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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Trust international Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd experieneed another successiul year despite
the continuing uncertainty of the economy. It gives me a great pleasure in reporting these results
and achievements of the Company for the year 2015, by which we gain financial and business
strength to invest in future growth,

In implementing our vision and strategy we rely and thank our Hold ing Company “Nest Investments
(Hoidings) Ltd”, Board members, organization leaders, employees and associates as they serve our
customers and sharcholders. Our Vision “To lead through innovation and service excellence” is very
challenging and motivating at the same time; it involves tireless efforts of self-tmprovement and
vigilant managing of the Company’s resources.

Economy

Due to the ongoing recession in the economy and the impact from the bailout, we had to take the
necessary measures to secure our unchanged strategic ambition of sustainable profitable growth,

Through the implementation of tough austerity measures for restructuring the economy, Cyprus has
achieved to exit the cconomic adjustment programme and this steady progress is anticipated to
have a positive effect on our business. We are entering 2016, with greater determination to succeed
and with confidence for the future prospects for our business.

Financial results

The Company’s net earned premiums from continuing operations rose to €19.150.017 comparing
to €17.857.422 in 2014, representing an increase of 7% from last year. The net profit for the year
was €5.579.332, which is €2.045.625 higher than last year’s profit of €3.533.707 . The main reason
for the increase in the net profit is the increase in the net earned premium and the profit from the
sale of investments. The net profit after tax of €5.579.332 compared to €3.336.898 in 2014 was a

great achievement.

Solvency II

The Company has implemented a number of actions in cooperation with our Board and Parent, in
order to reinforce its capital adequacy under the new regulatory regime for insurance companies,
Solveney II, which was implemented in the Euvropean Union on I January 2016. Amongst these
actions were the exchange of certain assets that carried high risk charges, a capital injection and the
transfer of the reinsurance activities to another group entity.

The Company aims to maintain a high solvency ratio under the new regime in order to retain its
leading position in the Cyprus insurance market.

Reinsurance Activities

Our Reinsurance activities are ceded to highly rated and credible reinsurers for the benefit of our
Iyrect Insurance Group. In order to manage this portfolio through a rated entity as well as using
the company’s capital more efficiently due to Solvency Il adoption, on 31 December 2015 the
portfolio of reinsurance business retained by the Company, was assigned to the Group Company
Trust International Insurance and Reinsurance Company B.S.C Trust Re, A- rated by both Standard

and Poor’s and AM Best.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN (continued)

Local Direct Insurance Activities

I am pleased to report that the Company had a successful year with regards to expansion and
market share. The growth for the year was 8% and its market share rose to 7%,

Corporate Governance

Since the initiation of our operations, the Company applies strong governance and transparent
reporting through established Board Committees, which have oversight responsibility over the
mternal functions of Compliance, Risk, Audit and Actuarial. Corporate Governance practices were
enriched and enhanced through risk based Internal Audits that cover all areas of operations and
Company locations. The implementation of the corporate governance and practices of risk
assessment has contributed significantly to the company’s growth and success.

Future Outlook

We anticipate that the Cyprus Local Operations are going to be the alternative option for both
Retail and Corporate clients. We are part of an international group carrying Insurance,
Reinsurance, Broking, Real Estate, Banking and other licensed services. We have the full support
of the parent in all respect and our Group Companies will continue to provide all the support we
need o achieve our goals,

The Board and the Executive team have been following an action plan to safeguard the Company
from the anticipated indirect threats, such as increased credit risk and fraudulent claims. At the
same time due to the Company’s risk processes which have been adopted from inception, we are
set up and ready to deal effectively with a number of possible scenarios. Furthermore, our high
solvency ratio allows the Company to continue pursuing its ambitious plans in expanding the

business.

Innovations are fueling our growth and help us to appeal to the next generation of customer and
retain our already loyal customers with the security they expect from us.

We strongly believe that Trust International Insurance Company {(Cyprus) Ltd is poised for growth
and future success. Building on our strong performance in 2015, the Company remains focused
towards increasing its market share and creating a balanced portfolio that will allow for even better
underwriting results and higher profitability.

The year 2015 will be remembered by us as the transition year, as the Company moved to its new
headquarters situated at the entrance of Nicosia. With this significant investment, the shareholders
have shown their trust and devotion not only to the country and the economy, but also to the hard

work of everyone involved.

We are ready to manage both the opportunities and the challenges ahead. Trust is committed to
building a brighter future for us all.

[/warmly thank my fellow board members, the executive team and the staff for their excellent
erformance throughout the year.

ixg s avvid
Chaitman




Trust International Insarance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I'am pleased to report that the year of 2015 was another year of achievement for Trust International
Insurance Company (Cyprus) Lid. We started the year as a strong and stable company and
managed to grow significantly by 8% our Direct Insurance Operations. Our financial results,
summarized in this report were satisfactory, but what’s more, we eamed recognition for our
achievements and market penctration,

Our Company

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd, established in 1990, is a member of the Nest
Investments (Holdings) Ltd (Nest Group). Since carrying out its direct insurance operations from
August 2009 under a new management and structure, the Company has been the fastest-growing
Insurance and reinsurance entity based in Cyprus.

Solvency 11

Solvency 11 is the updated sct of regulatory requirements for insurance companies which operate in
the European Union, which establishes a revised set of market consistent EU-wide capital
requirements and risk management standards effective from 1 January 2016. The Company has
been following an action plan, in cooperation with the Group Actuarial and Risk Department, for
preparing for Solvency Il. The Company aims to maintain a rohust solvency ratio under the new
regime, both under normal conditions and under stress test scenarios, which will enable the
Company to attract quality business and maintain its leading position in the Cyprus insurance

market.
‘The Company during 2015 operated from two locations:

l. The Amman Regional Office, which provides support for Reinsurance and technical services
for all Direct Insurance Companies of Nest Group. It also provides training and educational
assistance as well as other corporate services to the same group. In order to manage this
portfolio through a rated entity as well using the company’s capital more efficiently due to
Solvency It adoption, on 31 December 2015 the portfolio of reinsurance business retained by
the Company, was assigned to the Group Company Trust International Insurance and
Reinsurance Company B.S.C Trust Re, A- rated by both Standard and Poor’s and AM Best.

2. Cyprus Local Operations - Direct Insurance has marked 8% growth comparing to 2014,
achieving its ambitious budget plans. Our Company offers a wide range of insurance products
to cover personal lines, commercial and industrial risks. We employ 96 dedicated staff and
managers and our sales force is comprised of 185 experienced Brokers.

During 2015 the Company enhanced its corporate governance processes by upgrading its procedure
manuals, automating its operating systems and upgrading its ERM procedures. Throughout the year
we have also continued investing in technology; we have enhanced the Business Intelligence
system for transparency and reliable and timely decision-making. Furthermore, we have
implemented a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system in order to improve service
quality. We have also continued investing in our human resources by implementing the
competencies gained from our Investors in People accreditation.

Our Competitive Advantage

Nest Group provides a full range of Corporate Services to the Company in the following areas:

> Strategy
»  Actuarial and Risk Management




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER {continued)

> Human Resources and Training
> Information Technology

Through Corporate Services, the parent company provides the necessary tools to support our
requirements. Our shareholders’ financial strength and Insurance knowhow in combination with
the Company’s strong financial position and its highly motivated team of professional staff’
supports the Company’s ambitious plan; to be a leading Insurance Company. As a company we

aim to provide highly reliable and high-quality of products and services to customers through the
implementation of our key strategies:

»  Financial Stability: Work within the prevalent regulatory financial framework by securing the
necessary capital requirements from the shareholder, as well as proper risk and asset
management, in order to maintain a Solvency ratio that will render the Company the “Insurer
of choice”.

> Leadership position: Maintain our leading position ot “Top 57 in the Cyprus insurance market
in terms of quality written business whilst maintaining a net combined ratio better than the
industry.

> Stable business model: Significantly enhance the quality of our business portfolio in terms of
higher percentage of corporate and direct business, writing business with carefully selected
clients and brokers and shift to a more balanced portfolio.

> Innovation and market segmentation: Develop a new range of specialized products and
services to address specific market segments and co-exist alongside the traditional general
products and services. Through innovation to differentiate and be better than the competition,

# Evaluate new target markets: Seek to expand the target market outside the confines of the

Republic of Cyprus based on well-researched regions and justified feastbility studies.

Human Resources: Achieve employee engagement for operational excellence, work force

effectiveness, develop future leaders and capitalise on their ability to create professional

relations.

Technology: Through technology upgrades of the production systems to increase the

effectiveness of the Business Intelligence (for MIS) and customer service through the CRM

system; for accurate efficient and low administration cost operational excellence.

Y

A7

Building on our Strengths

The Company for the past six years has managed to establish itself as an Insurance Leader; a
Company that is:

» Financially sound and strong with the backing of an even stronger and well-established
Group, Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd, with Insurance know-how and expertise.

»  Dynamic and with high professional standards.

»  Always providing excellent service, aiming to meet customers’ expectations and is
focusing on speedy settlement of claims.

> Sophisticated processes to support our vision and mission,

The above give us the confidence to continue pursuing our ambitious goals for 2016 and for the
subsequent years.

In closing, [ would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Holding Company and the Directors
for their devotion and commitment to the success of the Company, their constant contribution and
availability to immediately deal with all issues arising; to Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd that
have greatly assisted the Company to build its strategies together with systems and practices, that
now, at this time of need, differentiates our Company from the competition; and finally, to all staff
members for their commitment and passion towards achieving our goals.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

Based on these synergies, our strong foundation and goals as well as our willingness to go above
and beyond, we will continue our path towards a greater future.

iristos Christodoulon
Chief Executive Officer




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors submits to the shareholders its Report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015,

Principal activities

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited (the “Company”, “Trust™) is a limited
lability company incorporated in Cyprus on 5 December 1990 in accordance with the provisions of the
Cyprus Companies Law Cap.113. The main activity of the Company during 2015 was carrying out
insurance/ reinsurance business as well as providing related consultancy services to other group
companies on ad-hoc basis . On 31 December 2015 the business of the Company’s branch in Jordan,
was assigned 1o another Group Company while the remaining assets and liabilities were distributed as a
dividend to the Company’s parent.

Branches

The Company operates from Cyprus and up to 31 December 2015, it was engaged in reinsurance
operations through the support of a branch in Amman, Jordan. As at 31 December 2015 the business of
the Company’s branch in Jordan, was assigned to another Group Company.

Results, eurrent position, development and performance

The Company’s gross wriften premium from the continuing operations was €23.613.947 in 2015
compared 0 €22.866.790 in 2014 (note 3). The increase of 3% is due to the growth of the direct
insurance activities by 8% whereas the reinsurance activities decreased. The gross written premium
{rom the discontinued operations was €46.719.367 in 2015 compared to €45.373.918 in 2014,

Gross incurred claims from the continuing operations increased from €10.630.988 in 2014 to
€13.325.85% in 2015 whereas Net incurred claims increased from €10.155.003 in 2014 to €I 1.296.880
in 2015, The Gross Loss Ratio (Gross Incurred Claims to Gross Farned Premium) was 59% in 2015
compared to 50% in 2014 and the Net Loss Ratio (Net Incurred Claims to Net Earned Premium) was
59% in 2015 comparing to 57% in 2014. A significant part of the increase in the loss ratios in 2015 is
due to the increase in the IBNR/IBNER reserves.

The net profit for the year from the continuing operations is €3.697.229 as compared to €1.833.297 for
2014. The main reason for the increase in the profit is the increase in net earned premium and the profit
from the sale of investments, whereas there has been an increase in the net claims incurred and
administrative expenses. The net profit for the year from the discontinued operations is €1.882.103 as
compared to €1.503.601 for 2014, The return on equity for 2015 is 18% and 12% for 2014.

The Company’s net technical reserves from the continuing operations stand at €19.124.828 as at 31
December 2015 as compared to €15.783.316 as at 3] December 2014. Included in the reserves is a Loss
adjustment Reserve of €272.625 (2014: Nil) and Net IBNR/BNER reserves of €1.880.750 (2014:

€992.208).

The Bank and Cash balances increased to €14.417.239 as at 31 December 2015 from €11.251.758 as at
31 December 2014,

Shareholders’ equity amounts to €20.080.301 as at 31 December 2015 comparing to €28.323.368 as at
31 December 2014. The movement which is shown in the Statement of changes in equity, is mainly
affected by the dividend payment, the increase in the share capital and the net profit for the year.

According to the latest official statistics of the Insurance Association of Cyprus, the Company retains a
share of 6,66% of the Cypriot general insurance market sector (2014: 6,11%) and ranked fourth between
the general business insurance companies excluding medical premiums written by [ife insurance
companies.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Dividends

As at 31 December 2015 the Company declared and fully paid an interim dividend of €15.067.603 to its
sole sharcholder Nest Investments (Holdings) Lid. The dividend was paid by distributing the remaining
assets and liabilities of its Jordan branch following the transfer of its operations 1o a related party. The
Board of Directors does not propose the payment of a final dividend for 2015 (2014: nil) (€0,91 per
share).

Main risks and uncertaintics

The Company is exposed to a variety of risks, the most important of which are insurance risk, changes in
the prices of investinents and interest rates, liquidity risk and credit risk. These risks are identified,
measured and monitored through various control mechanisms in order to prevent undue risk
concentrations. Information relating to these risks is disclosed in note 23 of the financial statements.

Share capital
On 22 September 2015 by an ordinary resolution, the issued share capital of the company was converted
from US$12.000.000 divided into 12.000.000 shares of USS$i each, to €10.643.960 divided into

10.643.960 shares of €1 each. On 7 December 2015 a resolution was passed for the issue and allotment
of €6.000.000 divided into 6.000.000 shares of €1 cach to the Sole Shareholder Nest Investments

(Holdings) Ltd.

The parent company has provided a confirmation that the credit balance of €1.040.385 due to them by
the Company, will not be called for payment and is considered subordinated for the purposes of

increasing the Company’s capital.

Events after the reporting date
There were no material events after the reporting period which have a bearing on the
understanding of the Financial Statements.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of three distinct groups namely Shareholder Representatives, Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The Board’s role is to set the overall strategic direction,
approve business plans and monitor the overall performance of the business against the approved plans,
within a compliant framework of corporate governance and ethical principles.

During 2015 the Board of Directors held five meetings and on three occasions the meeting was
preceded by a meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (N&RC), Audit Committee {AC)

and Risk Committee (RC).

Board Composition

Name Position Committee Role
Frixos Savvides Chairman N&RC Committee - Chairman
Investment Committee - Chairman
Kamel Abu Nahl Deputy Chairman N&RC Committee - Member
Mehran Eftekhar Group Finance and Corporate | N&RC Committee — Member
Services Director, Director Investment Committee ~ Member
Chris Georghiades Director Audit Committee - Member
Risk Committee ~ Chairman
Stavros Stavrou Director Audit Committee - Chairman
Risk Committee - Member
Investment Committee - Member
Kyriakos Kazamias Director Audit Committee - Member
Risk Committee - Member
Christos Chief Execntive Officer, Director | Investment Committee - Member
Christodoulou

10




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Frixoes Savvides — Chairman

Mr. Frixos Savvides a Chartered Accountant is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales. He was the founder of the audit firm PKF Savvides and Partners in Cyprus and
held the position of Managing Partner until 1999 when he became Minister of Health of the Republic of
Cyprus. He held this office until 2003. Mr. Savvides is currently a senior independent business
consultant and holds several Board positions.

Kamel Abu Nahl - Deputy Chairman

Mr. Kamel Abu Nahl’s work experience include Trust Infernational Insurance Co. as an Assistant
Underwriter, Brockbank (Lloyds) Syndicate (London) as an Underwriter, Property Underwriter for
Trust International Insurance Co. He is currently the Chairman for Trust International Insurance &
Reinsurance Company B.8.C (C) Trust Re as well as the Chairman and CEO of Trust Holdings Ltd.

Mehran Eftekhar - Group Finance and Corporate Services Director, Director

Mr. Mehran Eftekhar is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW) as well as holder of Diploma in Company Direction with the UK Institute
of Directors . He has over 40 years of experience in the private sector of finance and corporate
services. He serves as a non-executive Director of a number of Group companies. He is also Head of
Group Corporate Services at parent company level.

Chris Georghiades - Director

Mr. Chris Georghiades has an extensive experience of corporate and commercial legal matters,
particularly in relation to business acquisitions and corporate reorganizations, joint ventures,
shareholder disputes, insolvency, banking and taxation. He also advises on construction law, sports faw,
aviation law and administrative law. He is an LLB graduate of Athens University and an LLM graduate

of King’s College of London.

Stavros Stavrou — Director
Mr. Stavros Stavrou, a Chartered Accountant, is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in

England and Wales and a member of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. His work experience
includes the positions of Group Finance and Administration Director of Holborn Investment Company
Ltd and Managing Director in Oilinvest (Netherlands) BV Group of Companies. He is the Chairman
and one of the founder shareholders of Oceanfleet Shipping Ltd. During his career he has served as a
Director at a number of Companies, private and public.

Kyriakos Kazamias — Director
Mr. Kyriakos Kazamias is an MSc. graduate of Berlin Hochschule fur Okomomie (High School of

Economics). He served as Chief Executive Officer of Limassol Cooperative Savings. For ten years he
has been a member of the Parliamentary Committee of Finance and Budget. During the period 2004-
2010 he was Member of the European Court of Auditors in Luxembourg. His contribution to the
Cypriot economy has played an important role since he was the Minister of Finance.

Chiristos Christodoulou — Chief Executive Officer, Director

Mr. Christos Christodoulou holds an HND, BSc and an MSc in Mechanical Engineering (Computer
Controls) as well as Diploma in Company Direction with the UK Institute of Directors. He has an
extensive experience in corporate Management and Sales. He served the insurance industry for more
than twenty years, both in General Business and Life Operations from the positions of Sales Manager,
General Manager and Executive Director of both Life and General Business Insurance Companies.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS {continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Board Committees

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to committees. Any such committee must keep the Board
apprised on a timely basis of actions and determinations.

The committees that have been successtully formed by the Board of Directors, aim to provide support
and effective control of the Company, and are as follows:

Audit Committee:

* Stavros Stavrou - Chairman
* Chris Georgiades
* Kyriakos Kazamias

Secretary: Bvi Kazamia

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the financial
reporting process, the system of internal control and the audit.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

* Frixos Savvides - Chairman
» Mehran Efthekhar
» Kamel Abu Nahi

Secretary: Mufid Sukkar

The N & R Committee’s primary functions are to assess and evaluate board members and their
remuneration framework, review Board succession plans, make recommendations to the Board on
executive remuneration and incentive policies, and to review senior management remuneration
packages, recruitment, retention and termination policies, incentive schemes and pension arrangements.

Risk Conmmitice:

* Chris Georgiades - Chairman
+ Stavros Stavrou
* Kyriakos Kazamias

Secretary: Andreas Stylianou

The Risk committee assists the board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the identification,
analysis, assessment and management of all the risks which the Company faces in its operation and
which may impact upon the assets and liabilities of the Company; in particular (without limitation) to
assist in identifying those risks which may at first seem unlikely or even remote.

The Committee also monitors the compliance and anti-money laundering processes with the laws and
regulations as well as the code of conduct.

Investment Committee:

» Frixos Savvides - Chairman
* Mehran Eftekhar

+ Stavros Stavrou

* Christos Christodoulon

* Christos Patsalides

Secretary: Elena Pantzopoulou

The Investment Committee is a functional Committee, which assists the Board to formulate an
investment policy and to implement and monitor an investment strategy.

12




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited )

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board of Directors (continued)

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The Company follows a policy of segregating the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ).

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading and ensuring the effectiveness of the Board and
conduct of its meetings.

The CEO is responsible for the executive leadership and operational management of the Company. The
CEQ is accountable to the Board for the development, recommendation of strategles, policies and the

framework of controls,

Corporate Governance

We have introduced the appropriate corporate governance practices from the inception and have
therefore established a Board of Directors and the relevant Board Committees which serve as a useful
tool in the oversight of the Company. Trust Cyprus follows those rules and regulations in order to direct
and manage our business cffectively, in compliance with all the relevant local and international business
laws that apply.

The Board Committees comprise of a fully functioning Risk Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee suitably staffed by non-executive Directors having the
appropriate background and experience and following their respective fully approved Charters of
operation.

Risk Management
> Monitoring the overall level of risk assumed by Trust Cyprus, analyzing risk in both a
quantitative and qualitative manner, reviewing application effectiveness, monitoring the
progress of critical actions agreed by the business and providing assurance;

> Preparing and presenting regular risk and control reports to Trust Cyprus Executive
Management, and Committees (Risk Committee, Audit Committee eic).

»  Developing Trust’s control environment (i.c. policy framework, delegations of authority) and
assisting areas of the business to determine and implement specific risk controls,

Train staff, senior management on all aspects of risk management application and development
of a risk culture through raising awareness of risk across the organization.

v

Internal Audit

The risk based Internal Audit services were provided through the Nest Group Corporate Services until
April 2015, when a full time Internal Auditor was recruited by the Company, in order to set up its own

Internal Audit Department.
All the reports of the Internal Audit are presented to the Audit Committee where they are discussed and
approved.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Auditors

The independent auditors of the Company Ernst & Young Cyprus Limited, have expressed their
wiilingness to continue in office. The auditors for the year 2016 will be appointed at the Annual General
Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

-1

Cyproservus Co. Limited
Secfétary

Limassol

16 March 2016
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus)
Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
(the "Company") on pages 17 to 64, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companics Law, Cap. 113, and for such internal
control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due Lo fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a frue and fair view of the financial position of ‘Frust
International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies
Law, Cap. 113,

Report on Other Legal Requirements

Pursuant to the requirements of the Auditors and Statutory Audits of Annual and Consolidated Accounts

Laws of 2009 and 2015, we report the following:

*  We have obtained ali the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

*  Inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from the
examination of these books.

o The Company's financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.

*  Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, in the
manner so required.

* In our opinion, the information given in the report of the Board of Directors on pages 8 to 14 is
consistent with the financial statements.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body
in accordance with Section 34 of the Auditors and Statutory Audits of Annual and Consolidated
Accounts Laws of 2009 and 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whose knowledge this report may
come to.

Savvas Pentaris
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of

Ernst & Young Cyprus Limited
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors

Nicosia
16 March 2016
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Continuing operations
Gross earned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of gross earned preminms

Net earned premiums

Fee and commission income

Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition income
Investment income

Other income from insurance operations

Total revenue from continuing insurance operations

Gross msurance claims paid
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance claims
paid
Gross change in insurance contracts
tabilities
Reinsurers’ share of gross change in insurance
contracts liabilities
Change in provision for premium deficiency reserve
Change in provision for loss adjustment reserve
Commission expense, direct expenses and discounts
Administrative expenses for insurance operations
Finance costs

Total expenses for continuing insurance operations

Net revenue from continuing insurance operations
Other income
Other operating and administrative expenses

Profit from continuing operating activities before
income tax

Income tax

Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations

Net profit for the year

Notes

17
17
17
17

17
17

2015 2014
¢ ¢
Restaied
and
represenied
22.744.402 21.214.296
(3.594.385) (3.356.873)
19.150.017 17.857.423
2.638.855 2.292.408
163.486 188.588
(61.777) (187.862)
138.813 89.719
31.791 124.156
22.061.185 20.364.432

(9.334.710)
572.679

(3.991.149)

(8.522.610)
237.463

(2.108.378)

1.456.300 238.522
8.573 -
(272.625) -
(5.432.718) (5.295.644)
(4.552.933) (3.927.816)
(166.125) (150.724)

(21.712.708)

(19.529.187)

348.477 835,245
3.468.888 1.302.729
(120.136) (107.868)
3.697.229 2.030.106

- (196.809)
3.697.220 1.833.297
1.882.103 1.503.601
5.579.332 3.336.898

17




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
€ a
Restated
Net profit for the year 5.579.332 3.336.808
Otler comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified in the
income statement in subsequent periods
Net (losses) / gains on available-for-sale investments (1.038.646) 1.019.499
Transfer to the income statement on sale (2.617.463) (992.178)
Exchange differences on translation to presentation
currency - 1.723.614
(3.656.109) 1.750.935
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified in the
income statement in subsequent periods
Revaluation of land and buildings - 471.949
Other comprehensive (expense)/ income after tax (3.656.109) 2.227.884
Total comprehensive income for the year
1.923.223 5.559.782

alter tax
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2015

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Available-for-sale investments

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
Deferred acquisition costs

Reinsurers’ current accounts

Receivables from related companies

Premiums receivable

Other debtors and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Equity contribution from parent
Available for sale reserve

Property revaluation reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained eamnings

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Income received in advance
Loans and borrowings

Current Habilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Deferred acquisition income
Reinsurers’ current accounts
Payables to related companies

Other creditors and accrued expenses
Loans and borrowings

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Mehran Eftei(

Christos Christodoulou &

Notes

9
10

lla
Ib
17

o2

20

17

L2

18
19
20

3122015 3171272014 17172014
[ e ¢

Restared Restated
6.481.252  11.362.329 5.644.727
451.579 638.571 668.468
5.554.897 - -
- ~ 196,800
12.487.728  12.000.900 6.510.004
2.592.034 8595711 9.433.565
29,725 43.476 34376
3.460.813  39.868.181 32.624.937
2.126.000 1.962.514 1.773.926
- 3.036.362 1.753.212
3137786 {18.837.252 13.407.0644
8.155.197 11.939.581 10.968.479
712,799 4.366.381 631.172

14.417.239 11,251,758 8.642.494

34.631.593

99.921.216

79.269.805

47119321 111.922.116  85.779.800

16.643.960  8.223.684  8.223.684

1.040385  1.040385  1.040.385

(1237)  (600.300)  (627.621)

- 3701291 3220342

) 790355 (933.259)
2.397.193  14.850.621  11.522.723

20.080301  28.015.036 22455254

- 1.874.085  1.402.994

1.758.708  2.546.041 ]

1758708 4.420.126  1.402.994

22.585.641  S55.773.075  45.660.719

370.109 308.332 120.470

101316  7.806.806  7.112.232

- 6178878 2392615

1.809.432  8934.907  6.635.525

413.814 484.956 ]

25280312 79.486.954  61.921.56]

47.119321 111.922.116  85.779.809




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Foreign

Fepuiy Property clrrency
Share  contribution Aveilabl @ for revaduation transtation Rewained
Capital — from parent sale reserve resere reservi arnings Toral
é & ¢ & & €
Restated balance
1 Fanwary 2014 §.223.084 1.040.385 (627.621) 3229342 (933250 11.522,723 22455254
(Nete 2.4)
Profit for the year } - - - - 3.336.808 3.336.898
Other comprehensive
income after tax - - 27,321 471.949 1.723.614 - 2,222 884
Totaf comprehensive
income for the year - - 27321 471949 1.723.614 3.336.898 5.559.782
Restated bajance §.223.684 1.040,385 (600.300) 3.701.291 790,355 14.859.621 28.015.036
31 December 2014
Profit for the year - - - - 5.579.332 3579332
Other comprehensive
(expense)/income
after tax - - (3.056.109) (3.701.291) - 3.701.291 (3.656.509)
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income
for the year - - (3.656.109) (3.701.291) - 9.280.623 1.923.225
Issue of share capital 6.000.600 - - - - - 6.000.00D
Redenomination of share
capital from USD 10 Euro 2.420.276 - - - - {2.420.276) -
Assignment of Jordan
Branch business {Note7) - - 4255172 - - {4.253.172) -
Dividends paid
(Note 7 & 16) - ~ - {790.335)  (15.067.603) {15.857.938)
At 3T December 2015 16.643.960 1.040.385 (1.237) - - 2.397.193 20,030,301

As of 1 January 2003, companies which do not distribute at least 70% of their
Contribution for the defence of the Republic Law,

any time. This special contribution for defence is paid by the Company for the

profits after tax, as defined by the Special

during the two years after the end of the year of assessment to which the
profits refer, will be deemed to have distributed this amount as dividend. Special contribution for defence at 20% will be
payable on such deemed dividend for the years 2014 and 2015 to the extent that the shareholders (individuals and companies) at
the end of the period of two years from the end of the year of assessment to which the profits refer are Cyprus tax residents.
The amount of this deemed dividend distribution is reduced by any actual dividend paid out of the profits of the relevant year at

2012 and 2013 there was no such decmed distribution.

account of the sharcholders. For the tax years
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Trust International Insarance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash Flows from operating Aclivities
Net profit before income tax from continuing operations
Net profit before tax from discontinued operations
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment and
amortisation of intangible assets
Loss/ (profit) on disposal and write-offs of
Equipment
Profit on sale of available-for-sale investments
Loss/ (gain) on investments at fair value through
profit or loss
Exchange differences

Increase in premium receivable

Increase in deferred acquisition costs

Increase in deferred acquisition income

Increase in other debtors and prepayments

Increase in balances with related companies

Decrease in reinsurers’ ctrrent accounts

Increase in reinsurers’ share of insurance contract
labilities

Increase in deposits with banks

Increase in insurance contract liabilities

Increase in other creditors and accrued expenses

Increase in income received in advance

Cash generated used in operations

Net cash flow used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of computer software and other intangibles
Proceeds from disposal of equipment

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of investments

Cash transferred as a result of discontinued operations

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Issue of share capital

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

2015 2014
Notes 2 ¢
Restated
3.697.229 2.030.106
1.882.103 L.303.601
591.667 499,335
1.304 {24.848)
(3.134.541) {1.015.276)
13.751 (9.100)
- (491.863)
3.051.513 2.491.955
(850.121) (971.102)
(163.486) {188.588)
61.777 187.862
(161.172) (3.735.209)
{2.859.978) {1.663.343)
(16.356) {588.576)
(1.783.234) (7.243.244)
(5.122.877) {1.858.145)
5.124.746 10.112.356
181.074 2.299.382
- 471.091
(5.589.627) (3.177.518)

(2.538.114)

(685.563)

(1.159.109) (5.443.898)
(291.704) (259.140)
1.858 28.660
5.150.157 2.356.649
(2.593.144) -
(2.501.529) )

(1.393471)

(3.317.729)

- 3.500.000

{858.475) (469.003)

6.000.000 -

5.141.525 3.030.997

1.206.940 (972.495)
(3.167.336) 1.723.614
8.227.592 7.476.473

14 6.270.196 8.227.592
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

The financial statements of Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited (the
“Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authorised for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the Board of Directors on 16 March 2016.

The Company was incorporated in Cyprus on 5 December 1990 as a limited liability company in
accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113 and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Nest Investments (Holdings) Lid.

The registered office of the Company is located at 284 Archbishop Makarios 11 Avenue, Fortuna
Court Block B, 2" floor, 3015 Limassol, Cyprus,

The Company is engaged in the general insurance business in Cyprus and up 16 31 December
2015 also carried out, through its branch in Jordan (“ARO"), reinsurance business and provided
related consultancy services 10 other group companies. As at 31 December 2015 the business of
the Company’s branch in Jordan, was assigned to another Group Company, while its remaining
assets and liabilities have been distributed via an interim dividend paid in specic to the
Company’s parent.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and in accordance with the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for own properties,
investment properties and investments classified as available-for-sale and at fair value through
profit or loss, that have been measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency of the financial statements
The financial statements are presented in Euro (€) and all amounts are rounded to the nearest

euro, except where otherwise indicated.

On 31 December 2015, the Company decided to change the presentation currency of the
Financial Statements from USD ($) to Euro (€), that is the functional currency of the Company’s
continuing operations (Cyprus). The functional currency for the Company’s discontinued
operations (branch in Jordan) was the United States Dollar.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

2.2.1 Application of new standards, interpretations and amendments to IFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following amended IFRSs which have been adopted by the Company as of I January 2015:

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle, which is a collection of
amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015. The adoption of those standards did not have a material impact on the financial statements or

performance of the Company.
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Trust International Insuranee Company (Cyprus) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Functional and presentation currency of the financial statements

e IFRIC Interpretation 21: Levies

The Interpretations Committee was asked to consider how an entity should account for labilities
to pay levies imposed by governments, other than income taxes, in its financial statements. This
Interpretation is an interpretation of 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets. TAS 37 sets out criteria for the recognition of a lability, one of which is the requirement
for the entity to have a present obligation as a result of a past event (known as an obligating
event). The Interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability 1o pay a
levy Is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy.

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

The IASDB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle, which is a collection
of amendments 1o IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
I January 2015, with earlier adoption permitted from 1 July 2014,

® [FRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies for the scope exceptions within 1FRS 3

that:

« loint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of IFRS 3

» This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itsell and thus this amendment is not relevant for the Group and its subsidiaries.

* IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: This amendment clarifies that the scope of the portfolio
exception defined in paragraph 52 of IFRS 13 includes all contracts accounted for within the
scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or 1FRS ¢ Financial
Instruments, regardless of whether they meet the definition of financial assets or financial
ltabilities as defined in IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The Company does not
apply the portfolio exception of IFRS 13.

+ IAS 40 Investment Properties: This amendment clarifies that determining whether a specific
transaction meets the definition of both a business combination as defined in IFRS 3 Business
Combinations and investment properly as defined in 1AS 40 Investment Property requires the
separate application of both standards independently of each other.

2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective

Up to the date of the approval of the financial statements, certain new Standards, Interpretations
and Amendments to existing standards have been published that are not yet effective for the
current reporting period and which the Company has not early adopted, as follows:

» TAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible assets (Amendment):
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. This
amendment clarifies the principle in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from
operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through use of the asset. As a result, the ratio of revenue generated to total revenue
expected to be generated cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendment has

been endorsed by the EU.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SFTATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosares (continued)

2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective (continued)

* 1AS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and 1AS 41 Agriculture (Amendment): Bearer Planits

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016. Bearer
plants will now be within the scope of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and will be subject
to all of the requirements therein, This includes the ability to choose between the cost model and
revaluation model for subsequent measurement. Agricultural produce growing on bearer plants
{e.g., fruit growing on a tree) will remain within the scope of IAS 41 Agriculture. Government
granis relating to bearer plants will now be accounted for in accordance with 1AS 20 Accounting
for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, instead of in accordance with
IAS 41. The amendment has been endorsed by the EU.

IAS 19 Employee benefits (Amended): Employee Contributions

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after February 2015, The
amendment applies to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
objective of the amendment is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent
of the number of years of employee service, for example, employee contributions that are
calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Classification and measurement

The standard is applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
adoption permitted. The final phase of IFRS 9 reflects al} phases of the financial instruments
project and  replaces 1AS 39 Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement and all
previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. The standard has not yet been endorsed by the

EU.

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements (Amendment): Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, IFRS 11
addresses the accounting for interests in joint ventures and Jjoint operations. The amendment adds
new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a Jjoint operation that
constitutes a business in accordance with IFRS and specifies the appropriate accounting
treatment for such acquisitions. The amendment has been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The aim of this
interim standard is to enhance the comparability of financial reporting by entities that are
engaged in rate-regulated activities, whereby governments regulate the supply and pricing of
particular types of activity. This can include utilities such as gas, electricity and water. Rate
regulation can have a significant impact on the timing and amount of an entity’s revenue. The
IASB has a project to consider the broad issues of rate regulation and plans to publish a
Discussion Paper on this subject in 2015. Pending the outcome of this comprehensive Rate-
regulated Activities project, the IASB decided to develop IFRS 14 as an interim measure. IFRS
14 permits first-time adopters to continue to recognise amounts related to rate regulation in
accordance with their previous GAAP requirements when they adopt IFRS. However, to enhance
comparability with entities that already apply IFRS and do not recognise such amourts, the
standard requires that the effect of rate regulation must be presented separately from other items.
An entity that already presents IFRS financial statements is not eligible to apply the standard.
This standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2045

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective (continued)

1FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 1FRS 15
establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer
(with limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The
standard’s requirements will also apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses
on the sale of some non-financial assets that are not an output of the enlity’s ordinary activities
(e.g., sales of property, plant and equipment or intangibles). Extensive disclosures will be
required, including disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligations;
changes in contract asset and liability account balances between pertods and key judgments and
estimates. The standard has not been yet endorsed by the EU.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (amended)

The amendment is effective from 1 January 2016. This amendment will allow entities to use the
equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements and will help some jurisdictions move to IFRS for separate financial
statements, reducing compliance costs without reducing the information available to investors.
This amendment has been endorsed by the EU.

Amendment in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribation of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Ventuore

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and those in 1AS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A
partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The amendments will be effective from
anual periods commencing on or after | January 2016, The amendments have not yet been
endorsed by the EUL

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and ¥AS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments)

The amendments address three issues arising in practice in the application of the investment
entities consolidation exception. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. The amendments clarify that the exemption from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to 2 parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when
the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. Also, the amendments clarify
that only a subsidiary that is not an investment entity itself and provides support services to the
investment entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at
fair value. Finally, the amendments to I4S 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures allow
the investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by
the investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments

have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

The amendments to 1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements further encourage companies to
apply professional judgment in determining what information to disclose and how to structure it
in their financial statements. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The narrow-focus amendments to IAS clarify, rather than significantly
change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments relate to materiality, order of the notes,
subtotals and disaggregation, accounting policies and presentation of items of other
comprehensive income (OCI) arising from equity accounted Investments. These amendments

have been endorsed by the EU.
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective (continued)

» The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to 1FRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle, which is a
collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
onh or after | February 2015.

by

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: This improvement amends the definitions of vesting
condition" and 'market condition' and adds definitions for 'performance condition' and
‘'service condition’ (which were previously part of the definition of 'vesting condition").
TFRS 3 Business combinations: This improvement clarifies that contingent consideration in
a business acquisition that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments: This improvement requires an entity to disclose the
judgments made by management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments
and clarifies that an entity shall only provide reconciliations of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity's assets if the segment assets are reported regularly.

LFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: This improvement in the Basis of Conclusion of IFRS
I3 clarifies that issuing IFRS 13 and amending 1FRS 9 and IAS 39 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their
invoice amounts without discounting if the effect of not discounting is immaterial.

IAS 16 Property Plant & Equipment: The amendment clarifies that when an item of
property, plant and equipment is revalued, the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner
that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: The amendment clarifies that an entity providing key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity
is a related party of the reporting entity.

IAS 38 Intangible Assefs: The amendment clarifies that when an intangible asset is
revalued the gross camrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount.

+ The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to 1FRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle, which is a
collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. These annual improvements have been endorsed by the EU.

>

v

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: The amendment
clarifies that changing from one of the disposal methods to the other (through sale or
through distribution to the owners) should not be considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no interruption of the
application of the requirements in IFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. Also,
the amendment clarifies that the IFRS 7 disclosures relating to the offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits: The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for
high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective (continued)

»  IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: The amendment clarifies that the required interirn
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within
the greater interim financial repott (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The
Board specified that the other information within the interim financia) report must be
available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time.
If users do not have access to the other information in this manner, then the interim financial
report is incomplete.

* IFRS 16: Leases
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parlies to a contract, ie. the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (‘lessor’). The new standard
requires lessees to recognize most leases on their financial statements. Lessees will have a single
accounting model for all leases, with certain exemptions. Lessor accounting is substantially
unchanged. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

*  Amendments o IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendments, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
The amendment addresses how to account for deferred tax assets related to deht instruments
measured at fair value gives rise to a deductible temporary difference when the holder expects to
recover the carrying amount of the asset by holding it to maturity and collecting all the contractual
cash flows. IAS 12 provides requirements on the recognition and measurement of current or
deferred tax liabilities or assets. The amendments issued today clarify the requirements on
recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised Josses, to address diversity in practice. The
amendiment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

*  Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure initiative

The IASB added an initiative on disclosure to its work programme in 2013 to complement the
work being done in the Conceptual Framework project. The initiative is, inter alia, made up of a
number of smaller projects that aim at exploring opportunities to see how presentation and
disclosure principles and requirements in existing standards can be tmproved short-term. Among
them was a narrow scope project on IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 1o improve information
provided to users of financial statements about an entity’s financing activities and liquidity.

The objective of the amendments is to enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activitics, The amendments will require entities to provide
disclosures that enable investors to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments to IAS 7
respond to investors’ requests for information that helps them better understand changes in an
entity’s debt, which is important to their analysis of financial statements. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2.3 Significant judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date. Actual results may vary from
these current estimates. These estimates are reviewed pertodically, and, as adjustments become
necessary, they are reported in the income statement in the periods in which they become known.

The main assumptions and estimates concerning the future on the reporting date that pose a
significant risk of causing a material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year relate to:
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_Irust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

2.3 Significant judgments and estimates (continued)

Going concern

The Company’s management has assessed the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern. In making this assessment, the Company’s management has also considered the current
economic situation in Cyprus and the potential impact this may have on the Company’s operating
environment and financial position.

The management have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence in the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

Insurance business contracts
For the insurance business contracts, estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost of claims

reported and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) at the
reporting date. The estimation of the liabilities is based on past experience and market trends.

Provision for bad and doubtful debrs

The Company reviews its trade and other receivables for evidence of their recoverability, Such
evidence includes the customer's payment record and the customer's overall financial position.
If indications of irrecoverability exist, the recoverable amount is estimated and g respective
provision for bad and doubtful debts is made. The amount of the provision is charged through
profit or loss. The review of credit risk is continuous and the methodology and assumptions
used for estimating the provision are reviewed regularly and adjusted accordingly.

Fair value of property and investment properties

The Company’s accounting policy for property held for own use requires that it is measured at
fair value.

The Company carries its investment properties at fair value with changes in fair value being

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Valuations are carried out by qualified valuers by applying valuation models recommended by
the International Valuation Standards.

Depending on the nature of the underlying asset and available market information, the
determination of the fair value of property may require the use of estimates such as future cash
flows from assets and discount rates applicable to those assets. All these estimates are based
on local market conditions existing at the reporting date.

In arriving at their estimates of market values as at 31 December 2015, the valuers used their
market knowledge and professional judgement and did not rely solely on historical
transactional comparables, taking into consideration that there is a greater degree of
uncertainty than that which exists in a more active market, in estimating the market values of

property.

Impairment of available-for-sale -investments

Available-for-sale investments in equity securities are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in their fair value below cost. In such a case, the total loss
previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement. The determination of
what is significant or prolonged requires judgement by management. The factors which are
evaluated include the expected volatility in share prices. In addition, impairment may be
appropriate when there is evidence that significant adverse changes have taken place in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the investee operates.
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2.3 Significant judgments and estimates (continued)

Available-for-sale investments in debt securities are impaired when there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred afler the initial recognition of the
imvestment and the loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the investment, The Company’s policy in place requires that a review for potential impairment
is carried out. Such impairment review takes into account a number of factors such as the
financial condition of the issuer, any breach of contract, the probabiity that the issuer will
enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation, which involves a high degree of judgement,

ncome taxes

The Company operates and is therefore subject to taxation in Cyprus. Estimates are required in
determining the provision for taxes at the reporting date, and therefore the tax determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax expense, the tax liabilities and deferred tax liabilities of the

period in which the final tax is agreed with the tax authorities.,
2.4 Change in accounting policy and prior year adjustment
2.4.1 Change in presentation currency from USD to Euro

The financial statements are presented in Euro (€) and all amounts are rounded (o the nearest euro,
except where otherwise indicated.

On 31 December 2013, following the assignment of its Jordan Branch business, the Company
decided to change the presentation currency of the financial statements from USD ($) to Euro (€),
that is the functional cuirency of the Company’s continuing operations (Cyprus) in order to better
reflect the underlying performance of the Company . The functional currency for the Company’s
discontinued operations (branch in Jordan) is the United States Dolar.

A change in presentation currency is a change in accounting policy which is accounted for
retrospectively. Statutory financial information included in the Company's financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 previously reported in USD has been restated into Euro using

the procedures outlined below:
* Assets and liabilities denominated in non-Euro currencies were translated into Euro at the

closing rates of exchange on the relevant balance sheet date;

s non-Euro income and expenditure were translated at the average monthly rates of
exchange for the year.

e the cumulative Available for Sale and translation reserves have been restated on the basis
that the Company has always reported in Euro. Share capital, share premium and the other
reserves were translated at historic rates prevailing at the dates of the initial transactions

all exchange rates were extracted from the Group's underlying financial records.

2.4.2 Deferred acquisition income

During 2015, the Company identified that its deferred acquisition income was understated. The
Company has proceeded in correcting this by recognising the additional required liability and
adjusting accordingly its retained earnings.

The following table summarises the retrospective restatement and the adjustments made to the
statement of financial position on the recognition of the additional liability for Deferred

acquisition income.
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2.4 Change in accounting policy and prior year adjustment (continued)

2.4.2 Deferred acquisition income (continued)

Retained
earnings
¢

Balances at 1 January 2014, as previously reported 11.643.193
Impact of the recognition of Deferred acquisition income L(120.470)
Restated balances at 1 January 2014 1522723
Balances at 31 December 2014, as previously reported 15.167.953
Impact of the recognition of Deferred acquisition income at
1 January 2014 (120.470)
impact of the recognition of Deferred acquisition income
during 2014 _(187.862)
Restated balances at 31 December 2014 . 14.859.621

The effects on the statement of comprehensive income were as follows:

For the year ended 31

December
2015 2014
€ €
Decrease in total comprehensive income for the year before
tax (61.777) (187.862)
Increase in deferred acquisition income hability (370.109) (308.332)

2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.5.1 Revenue recognition

Gross premiums
Gross general insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole

period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period. They are
recognised on the date on which the policy commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising
in the accounting period for premiums receivabie in respect of business written in prior accounting
periods. Rebates that form part of the premium rate, such as no-claim rebates, are deducted from
the gross premium; others are recognised as an expense. Premiums collected by intermediaries, but
not yet received, are assessed based on estimates from underwriting or past experience and are
included in premiums written.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The
proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5.1 Revenue recognition (continued)

Relnsurance premiums

Gross general reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable for the whole
cover provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognised on the date on which the
policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting peried in respect of
reinsurance comdracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to
periods of risk afier the reporting date. Uneamed reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term
of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts and over the term of the
reinsurance contract for losses-occurring contracts.

Fees and commission income

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services and other contract
fees. These fees are recognised as revenue over the period in which the related services are
performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and
recognised over those future periods.

Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated by using the

effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield
of the financial asset or Hability are recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the
instrument. Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is

established.

Realised gains and losses
Realised gains and losses recorded in the income statement on investments include gains and

losses on financial assets and investment properties. Gains and losses also include the ineffective
portion of hedge transactions. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the
difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occuirence of the sale transaction.

2.5.2 Benefits, claims and expenses recognition

Gross benefits and claims

General insurance and health claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported
or not, refated internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing
and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any

adjustments {o claims outstanding from previous years.

Reinsurance claims
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according

to the terms of the relevant contract.

Finance cost
Interest paid is recognised in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated by using the

effective interest rate method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the interest
bearing financial liability.
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting pelicies (continued)

2.5.3 Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) and Deferred acquisition income (DAY

Those direct and indirect costs incurred during the financial period arising from the writing or
renewing of insurance contracts, are deferred to the extent that these costs are recoverable out of
future premiums. All other acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred,

The commission income on reinsurance premiums incurred during the financial period arising
from the writing or renewing of insurance contracts, is deferred to the extent that these revenues
are recoverable out of future premiums. All other commission income is recognised as a revenue
when incurred,

DAC for general insurance and health products are amortised over the period in which the related
revenues are earned.

DAL for general insurance products, are recognised over the period in which the related revenues
are earned.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected paitern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period and are
treated as a change in an accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at cach reporting date or more frequently when an indication
of impairment arises. When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement. DAC and DAI are also considered in the liability
adequacy test for each reporting period.

DAC and DAT are derecognised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed of.
2.5.4 Insurance contract liabilities (general insurance and healthcare contract liabilities)

Non-life insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, the provision for
unearned premium, the provision for premium deficiency and the provision for loss adjustment.
The outstanding claims provision is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the reporting dale, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling
costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be
experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore, the ultimate
cost of these cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date. The Hability is calculated at the
reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical
data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation. The lability is not
discounied for the time value of money. No provision for equalisation or catastrophe reserves is
recognised. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is
discharged or is cancelled.

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or receivable
that relates to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is recognised
when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to account as premium
income over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service provided

under the contract.
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5.4 Insurance contract liabilities (general insurance and healtheare contract liabilities)
(continued)

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a hability adequacy test is
performed in accordance with the relevant guidelines of the superintendent of Insurance in Cyprus
to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs
over uncarned premiums. This calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows
after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets refating to the relevant
non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the
unearned premiums (less related deferred acquisition costs) is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognised in the income statement by setting up a provision for premium deficiency.

2.5.5 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The
Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not af fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated.
Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the Company’s
documented investment strategy is to manage financial investments on a fair value basis, because
the related kabilities are also managed on this basis.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, j.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

a} Financial assets at fair value throush profit or loss
shp

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Investments typically
bought with the intention to sell in the near future are classified as held for trading. For
investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the following criteria must be met:

e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a
different basis; Or

*» The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both,
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordanee with a
documented risk management or investment strategy.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
remeasured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement.

JU8]
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5.5 Financial assets (continued)
(b) Available-for-sale (AFS) financial investments

AFS investments include equity investments. Equity investments classified as ATS are those that
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and credited in the AFS
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in other operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss
is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the income statement.

{¢) Loans and receivables

This category is the most relevant to the Company and includes reinsters’ share of insurance
contract liabilities and reinsurers’ current accounts, receivables from related companies, preniums
receivables, other debtors and cash and cash equivalents. Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The
fosses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is derecognised when:

The rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired; Or

* The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either:

¢ The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; Or

The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.

2.5.6 Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial labilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of foans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
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2.5  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.5.6  Financial Liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(@) Financial liabilities af fuir value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial labilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,

Financial habilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or Joss.
Financial labilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied, The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Other financial labilities

This is the category most relevant to the Company and includes loans and borrowings, insurance
contract liabilities, reinsurer’s current accounts, payable to related companies and other creditors.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisitton and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs

in the statement of profit or loss.

(¢} Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts
are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and
the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another fiom the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiaily
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the criginal hability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5.7  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporfed in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and setile the
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense will not be offset in the income statement unless
required or permitied by any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the
accounting policies of the Company.

2.5.8 Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses.
Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies, Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled
claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance
contract.

Reinsurance assels are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when
an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is
objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance
asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the
contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will
receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the income statement.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in the income statement immediately at the
date of purchase and are not amortised.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders,
The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for non-life
insurance contracts where applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised
as revenue or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered
direct business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are
estimated in a mammer consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Premiums and claims are
presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance. Reinsurance assets or liabilities
are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is

transferred to another party.

2.5.9 Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables
are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. The carrying value of
insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the income
statersent. Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial
assets, as described in Nole 2.5.5 have been met.

2.5.10 Insurance payables

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of
the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent o initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

)
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.5.11 Derecognition of insurance payables

Insurance payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or
expired,

2.5.12 Provisions for pending litigation or claims

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
reswlt of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
2.5.13 Retirement benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement plan that requires the payment of
contributions to a separately administered fund (funded scheme). The cost of providing benefits
under the defined contribution plan is recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis,

2.5.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks
and at hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months from the date of

acquisition.
2.5.15 Foreign currencies

On 31 December 2015, the Company decided to change the presentation currency of the Financial
Statements from USD ($) to Euro (€), that is the functional currency of the Company’s continuing
operations (Head Office in Cyprus) on 31 December 2015. The functional currency for the
Company’s discontinued operations (branch in Jordan) is the United States Dollar. For the
purposes of the Company’s financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the branch are
translated into € at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and income and expenses
are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or using an average rate
of exchange, as appropriate. The exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s Head Office and ARQ

at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in fine with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value
of the itemn (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value galn or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income or

profit or loss, respectively).
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5.16 Leases — Company as a lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income Statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.5.17 Property and equipment

Owner-occupied property is property held by the Company for use in the supply of services or for
administrative purposes.

Owner-occupied property is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value,
Valuations are carried out annually by independent qualified valuers. On disposal of frechold land
and buildings, the relevant revaluation reserve balance is transferred to retained earnings.

The buildings are depreciated at an annual rate of 2%.

Equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on cost on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life, using the

following annual rates;

Furniture and office equipment 10%/ 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 15%
Leasehold improvements 25%

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of property and equipment is the greater of net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit

to which the asset belongs.

2.5.18 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment in
value. Amortisation is calculated on cost on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of the assets, of five years for computer software and for recruitment bonuses. At each
reporting date the carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.
When the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, intangible assets are

written down to their recoverable amount.

2.5.19 Income taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
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2.5 Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5.19 Income taxes (continued)
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and
not in the income statement, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that faxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or Hability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assefs are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is seitled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or Joss is recognised outside profit or Joss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists {0 set
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.5.20 Fair value measurement

Depending on its adopted accounting policy, the Company measures certain financial instruments
and certain non-financial assets such as properties, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction hetween markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the assct or lability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.
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2.5

2.5.20

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available 1o measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observahle
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

*

2.5.23

Level 1 -~ Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether wransfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest leve] input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Defined contribution plan

The Company recognises obligations, in respect of the accounting period in the income
statement. Any unpaid contributions at the reporting date are included as a liability.

Discontinued operations

The Company presents discontinued operations in a separate line in the income statement if a
component of an entity has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and a) represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, b) is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations. Net profit from discontinued operations includes the net total of operating profit and
loss before tax from discontinued operations (including net gain or loss on sale before tax and
gain or loss on measurement to fair value less cost to sell of a disposal group constituting a
discontinued operation) and discontinued operations tax expense.

Comparative information

Comparatives have been represented for the results of the Company’s branch in Amman,
Jurdan o present them as discontinued operations (Note7).
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3. General insurance business

Earned preminum income and reinsurance premiums

Fotal gross premiums
Change in the provision for unearned premiums

Gross earned premiums

Total reinsurance premiums
Change in the provision for unearned reinsurance
Premims

Larned reinsurance premiums

Net earned premiums

Deferred acquisition costs

1 January

Deferred acquisition costs for the year

Acquisition costs charged to the income
slaiement

31 December

2015 2004

¢ 3

Restated and

represenied

23.613.947 22.866.790
{869.545) {1.652.494)
22.744.402 21214296
3.921.319) (3.981.380)
326934 624.507
{3.594.385) (3.356.873)
19.150.017 17.857.423
2015 2004

¢ €

Restared

1.962.514 1.773.926
(4.699.840) (4.551.974)
4.863.326 4.740.562
2.126.000 1.962.514

The change in deferred acquisition costs for the year is included in the income statement.

Deferred acquisition income

1 January

Deferred acquisition income for the year

Commission income credited to the income
statement

31 December

2015 2014

€ €
Restated and

represenied

308.332 120.470
(889.240) (577.668)
951.017 765.530
370.109 308332

The change in deferred acquisition income for the year is recognised in the income statement.
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3. General insurance business (continued)

The following additional information is disclosed for direct business in Cyprus, in accordance
with the Accounting Orders issued under section 87(2) of the Laws on Insurance Services and
other Related issues:

2 0] J Miscelluneons

SJivwencicld
fipix,
Ships, Fire ond Tepead
Louwdy in satiral Credit ey
freenit qind Jurees aind General and and
Acvident and  Muotor Yehicle Moty gircraft oo demoge liahility dhariniee asvistmee Tonal
Avadth closs fiahility clsy Vehicle, oher liahiliny closs w properiy olasy olasy vlasy A
claxsex
& 3 ¢ & & £ 13 & [
Gross premiving writlen 2,746,635 171968 3371882 115473 A.818.493 2.634.358 - £1.895 24,940,152
Reinsurers’ share of
Gross prenviums
Written 102,866 33325 83150 54,509 2941650 139,064 - 36,715 3691415
Gross enrned
presiuims 2.575.963 10,967,526 3.158.085 166256 4.532.760 2.136.283 - G%.476 23.876.330
Gross onsanding
Claims 291724 6533277 2437.076 19.002 1.599. 144 1£.017.990 - 5.00¢ i1.902.703
Gross slaims
Incurred 1,619,181 5,468,542 3.228.492 130474 3644 340 652,729 - 8838 12.803 593
Ciross claims
Charges 1398 794 354572 2.335.05) 132,021 517,168 244 487 - 3838 £ 485,929
Gross operating
expenses -
other than
commissions 549,71 2430770 135,986 22.533 982355 512462 - 16.631 5250458
Commissiony 312,09 2.116.564 1.044.627 15520 820,519 386,975 - 1616 4.699 8490
Reinsurers’ share of
insurance comracts
lianbigities 1400 902,654 47033 20,702 2,288,491 G0.556 - W0ATY
"2 01 J Miscellaneons
[finaucicl
foss,
Ships, Fire amd fepatt
ponxls in nectnred Crediz expRses
transit oned Jorees and Creneral amd cned
Acciddernt cund Moror Vehicke Mo Febicty, aircraft  vther damage Tiability Luaranie assisrnce Tl
sivalth claxy lishilicy closs ather classes  Hability elove o propersy closs vlass clasy 2044
[ ¢ & ¢ £ £ & 3 ¢
(ross promiums writlen 2.105.2%4 10.623.281 3.120.389 108410 4.286986 276411 56,704 23.065.805
Reinsurers' sharg of
Gross premiums
Written 52.464 352553 77.355 68984 2.518.802 666.85¢ - 2773 3.823.783
Gross earned
premiums 2.070.069 10,470.130 2.797.459 106,364 3.774.220 2.469.62¢ - 34,473 21722339
Gross omstanding
Claims 240.887 4.219.307 1.743.636 1$.549 I5t9v2 609, 74t - - 7.585.009
Gross claims
Incurred 1.336.373 4.983.160 2282317 5326 843,592 414.852 - ©.865.620
Gross claims
Charges 1213677 4.001.442 2.084,783 £.083 656.307 198.20¢ - 5.165.996
Gross operating
expenses —
other than
commissichs 309 2.201.703 $639.604 19.693 820028 507.01¢ 10.788 4,603,749
Commissions 292, 14¢ 2.102.026 973.286 11.590 748,723 417 .54¢ 6.561 4.551.974
Reinsurers’ share ot
insurance conlracts
liabilities 32,829 Z38.902 93.729 13.589 1.208.217 39.46( - 15325 1.642.65¢

During the year 2015, 2.819 (2014: 2.687) claims were incurred relating to the motor vehicle liability
class, of which 789 (2014: 675) were outstanding at 31 December 2015, and their average cost was
€1.322 (2014: €1.496).
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4. Administrative expenses for insurance operations

2015 2004

£ ¢

Restated

and

represented

Salaries 2.358.587 2.038.329
Employer’s contributions 250.204 220.318
Retirement benefit plan costs 83.267 68.698
Other staff costs 127.724 96.011
2.819.782 2.423.356

Professional fees 78,786 34.004
Selling and advertising costs 310.464 221.736
Rent expense for operating leases of land and buildings 63.960 157.760
Electricity, heating and water 39.988 37.092
Insurance, taxes and maintenance of building 57.586 28.725
Maintenance of office equipment and consumables 65.315 40.167
Computer expenses 128.031 77.169
Printing and stationery 78.036 63.933
Telephone expenses 56.061 51.266
Postages and courier expenses 16.225 17.550
Subscriptions 18.524 14.531
Entertainment expenses 31.661 28.299
27.736 26.005

Travelling expenses

Motor vehicle expenses 75.291 65.546
Storage expenses 40.547 40.393
Provision for doubtful debts 21.748 88.018
Depreciation of property and equipment 248.895 170.178
Amortisation of intangible assets 263.665 287.468
Other 14.285 8.435
Relocation expenses 5.712 45.585
Foreign exchange loss 90.635 -

4.552.933 3.927.816

Total staff costs for the year are included in "Administrative expenses for insurance operations”
in the income statement.

The number of employees of the Company as at 31 December 2015 was 96 persons (31
December 2014 82).

The Company operates since August 2011, a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
covering all of its permanent employees in Cyprus. The plan is funded and is separately
administered.

5. Other income and other operating and administrative expenses

2015 2014
€ €
Restated and
represented
Other income
Dividend income 334.347 278.353
Profit on sale of available-for-sale investments 3.134.54] 1.015.276
Change in fair value of investments at fair value
through profit or loss - 9.100
3.468.888 1.302.729
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5. Other income and other operating and administrative expenses (continued)

2015 2004

€ &

Restated

and

Other operating and administrative expenscs represent

ed

Directors” fees 62.850 62.850

Loss on disposal and wrile-off of assets 1.650 -

Professional fees 40.959 44.668

Special levy 350 350

Immovable property tax 576 -
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through

profit or loss 13.751 -

120.136 107.868

Professional fees include fees (including taxes) of independent auditors of Ermnst &Young Cyprus
Limited, for audit and other professional services rendered to the Company as follows:

2015 2014
€ €
Fees for the audit of the financial statements 26.674 21.41]
Fees for other audit related services - 8.536 8.029
Fees for tax services 1.190 1.190
Fees for tax services ~ prior years 952 -
37.352 30.630
6. Income tax
2015 2014
& &
Income Statement
Deferred income tax
Temporary differences of unutilised tax Josses - 196.809
Income tax income as reported in the income statement - 196.809

The reconciliation between income tax expense and profit before income tax, as estimated
using the current tax rates, is set out below:

2015 2014
€ €
Profit from operating activities before income tax 3.697.229 2.030.106
Tax at Cyprus statutory income tax rate 12,5% 462.154 253.763
Tax effect of:
Expenses not deductible §1.393 59.938
Intangible assets allowances (42.606) (16.917)
Profits not subject to Cyprus tax (433.611) (162.841)
Losses utilised during the year (67.330) (133.943)
Prior year tax adjustments - 196.809
Income tax for the year - 196.809
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6. Income tax {continued)

Corporate income in Cyprus is calculated at the rate of 12,5% on the taxable income of the

year.

7. Profit from discontinued operations

Gross earned premitms
Reinsurer’s share of gross earned premiums
Net carned premiums

Fee and commission income
Other income from insurance operations

Total revenue from discontinued insurance operations

Gross insurance claims paid
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance claims paid
Gross change in insurance contracts liabilities

Reinsurers™ share of gross change in insurance

contracts liabilities

Comimission expense

Administrative expenses for insurance operations
Finance costs

Total expenses for discontinued insurance operations

Net expenses from discontinued insurance operations

Other income
Other operating and administrative expense
Profit after tax from discontinued operations

2015 2014

€ '
48.879.682  36.889.200
(18.879.682)  (36.889.200)
10.861.163 8.532.478
151.551 124.956
11.012.714 8.657.434
(19.341207)  (11.777.251)
10.088.287 11.547.723
(1.285.871) 2.133.235
1.251.235 (2.104.503)

(10.861.163)
(1.579.917)
(11.936)

(8.532.478)
(1519.722)
(5.917)

(12.740.572)

(10.258.913)

(1.727.858) (1.601.479)
3.659.864 3.153.569

(49.903) (48.489)
1.882.103 1.503.601

Discontinued operations relate o the Company’s branch in Amman, Jordan, the operations of which, at
31 December 2015, have been assigned to a related company while its remaining assets and liabilities

have been distributed as an interim dividend paid in specie.

The assignment of the business of the Jordan Branch to a related party has been accounted for within
equity as a transaction between entities under common control, by derecognising the net assets

transferred at their carrying value against retained earnings.

Similarly the accumulated foreign currency translation reserve and the accumulated available for sale
reserve relating to the transferred assets and liabilities, have also been transferred to retained eaImings.
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8. Property and equipment

2015

Cast or Valuation

I January (as restated)
Revaluation

Additions

Disposals and write-offs
Disposals as a result of

discontinued operations

Exchange difference

31 December

Depreciation

] January (as restated)

Revaluation

Charge for the year -
continuing operations

Charge for the year -

discontinued operations

Disposals and write-offs
Disposals as a result of

discontinued operations

Exchange difference

31 December

Net book value
31 December

Property  Leasehold Motor  Computer  Furniture Total
fmprovements  vehicles  havdware  equipment

£ ¢ € € € €
10.846.362 141.607 492.087  370.508 S27.655  12.378219
581.803 1.035 117.500 156.003 3027768 1.159.109
(5.554.897) - (4.500)  (30.213) (5.452) (5.595.062)
- » (237.638)  (87.607) (217.259)  (542.504)
5.873.268 142.642 367.449  408.691 607.712  7.399.762
- 120.383 285.129  295.695 314.683  1.015.890
73.065 18.478 44.580  57.592 55.180 248.895
. - 27.329 6.716 15.530 49.575
- - (1.350)y  (30.213) (5.440) (37.003)
- - (148.879)  (79.850) (130.118)  (358.847)
73.065 138.861 206.809 249,940 249.835 918510
5.800.203 3,781 160.640  158.751 357.877  6.481.252
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8. Property and equipment (continued)
Property  Leasehold Motor  Computer Furniture Total
improvements  vehicles  hardware  equipment

¢ € € ¢ 3 ¢
2014
Cost or Valuation
I January (as restated) 5.136.369 136.630 470333 335.545 472766 6.551.643
Revaluation 418.528 - - - - 418.528
Additions 5.291.465 4.977 83.826 28353 35277 5443898
Disposals and write-offs - (95.320) (5.996) - (101.316)
Exchange difference - - 33.248 12.606 19.612 65.466
31 December 10.846.362 141.607 492.087  370.508 527.655  12.378.219
Depreciation
1 January {as restated) - 102.164 303914 246.269 254,569 906916
Revaluation {53.421) “ - - - (53.421)
Charge for the year 53.421 18.219 52.010  39.516 46.566 209,732
Disposals and write-offs - - (95.320) {2.184) - {97.504)
Exchange difference - - 24.525 12.094 13.548 50.167
31 December - 120.383 285129 295.695 314.683 1.015.890
Net book value
31 Pecember 10.846.362 21.224 206.958 74813 212972 11.362.329

Al property is freehold and is shown at valuation carried out by independent qualified valuers at
31 December 2015 in accordance to IFRS 13. Fair value of the properties was determined by
using market comparable method. This means that valuations performed by the valuer are based
on active market prices, significantly adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific property.

The cumulative revaluation swplus at 31 December 2015 was Nil (2014: €3.701.291). Any
revaluation surplus is included in the property revaluation reserve. The historical cost of property
amounts to €5.873.26 (2014: €7.649.302).

All property is used for the Company’s business purposes.

The net book value of freehold property, on a cost iess accumulated depreciation basis, as at 31
December 2015 would have amounted to €5.800.203 (2014: €7.318.62).

During 2015 the Company started using the new property acquired in 2014 in Cyprus as its Head
Office. The same property was under construction as at 31 December 2014 and hence no
depreciation was charged for 2014.

As at 31 December 2015 the Company exchanged the land and building used by its branch in
Jordan at its fair value of €5.554.897 with investment properties in Cyprus of equivalent fair
value (refer to Note 10).
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9.

Intangible assets

2015

Cost

1 Jannary (as restated)
Additions

Disposals as a result of discontinued operations

31 December

Depreciation
1 January (as restated)

Charge for the year for continuing operations
Charge for the year from discontinued operations
Disposals as a result of discontinued operations

31 Decembey

Net book value
31 December

2014

Cost

I January (as restated)
Additions

Exchange difference

31 December
Depreciation
I January (as restated)

Charge for the year
Exchange difference

31 December

Net book value
31 December

Computer  Recruitment Total
softwere bonuses
€ € €
512709 1.265.748  1.778.457
126,487 165.217 291.704
(389.971) - (389.97n)
249,225 1.430.965  1.680.190
307.938 831.948  1.139.886
42367 221.298 263.665
29.532 - 29.532
(204.472) - (20447
175.365 1.053.246  1.228.611
73.860 377.719 451.579
Computer  Recruitment Total
safiware bonuses
£ € &
352517 1.145.849  1.498.366
139.241 119.899 259.140
20.951 - 20.951
512.709 1.265.748  1.778.457
246.054 583.844 829.898
41.499 248.104 289.603
20.385 - 20.385
307.938 831.948  1.139.886
204.771 433.800 638.571
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10.  Investment properties

2015 2014

€ &

1 January - -
Additions L 5.554.897 -
31 Decentber _5,554.897 -

As at 31 December 2015 the Company exchanged the land and building owned in Amman used
by its branch in Jordan at its fair value of €5.554.807 with investment properties in Cyprus of
equivalent fair value (refer to Note 8).

The investment properties comprise immovable property and land and are measured at fair value
using open market value determined by independent professionally qualified valuers.

The investment properties comprise fand in Asgata Limassol and offices in Neapolis Limassol.
11.  Investments

(a) Available for sale investments

2015 2014
€ 4
Restated
Equity shares

Listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange 214 238
Listed on the Qatar Stock Exchange (note (a)) - 3.962.394
Listed on the Amman Stock Exchange (note (b)) - 4.633.079
214 8.595.711

Government bonds
Listed on the German Stock Exchange 780.829 -
Listed on the Austrian Stock Exchange 812,198 -
Listed on the Finnish Stock Exchange 998.793 -
2.591.820 -

2.592.034 8.595.711

Income from investments for the year amounted to €334.347 (2014: €278.353) and is included in
“Other income’ in the income statement.

The movement for the years 2015 and 2014 respectively is summarised below:
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H.

Investments (continued)

Interest Carrying Carrving
Cost recelvable  Revaluation amount amount
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
¢ £ € € &
Equity shares and
Government Bonds
available for sale
I January (as 9.361.667 - {765.956) 8.595.711 9.433.565
resfated)
Additions 2.584.209 - - 2.584.209 .
Disposals (2.015.616) - (2.617.463) (4.633.079) (2.333.551)
Disposals as a
result of
discontinued
operations (7.345.925) - 4.420.829 (2.925.096) -
Revaluation - - {1.038.428) (1.038.428) 1.019.498
Exchange
difference - - - - 476.199
Interest receivable - 8717 - 8.717 -
31 December 2.584.335 8.717 (1.018) 2.592.034 8.595.711
(b) Investments at fuir value through profit or loss
2015 2014
€ o
Restated
Equity shares
Listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange (note (c)) 29.725 43.476

Note (a)
This represented shares in a listed bank established in Qatar. The Company’s parent, Nest
Investment Holdings Ltd, has acquired this investment at its acquisition cost as at 31 December

2015,

Note (b)
This represented shares in an investment/brokerage company listed on the Amman Stock
Exchange. The investment for 2014 was valued using an adjusted net asset value per share method

(discounted for liquidity (level 3)).

Note (c)
This represents shares in a listed bank, Bank of Cyprus, that were acquired as a result of the
conversion of the Bank’s deposits including shares in accordance with the relevant decrees issued

by the Central Bank of Cyprus.
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11.

Investments (continued)

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Valuation Significant  Discoumt
technigue unabiservable SJactor
inputs
AFS investments Cost method a.  Hiquidity 13%

discount

Fair valie hierarchy

Sensitivity to the input
1o fair value (equity
value/share af 31
December 2014)

+5% (€1,52)/

5% (€1,38)

As at 31 December 2015, the Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair

value in the statement of financial position:

Level [ Level 2 Level 3 37 December
2015 ¢ € ¢ &
Available for sale
investments 2.592.034 - - 2.592.034
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss 29.725 - - 29.725
Level I Level 2 Level 3 3 December
2014 & ¢ a3 '3
Available for sale .
investments 3.962.632 - 4.633.079 8.395.711
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss 43.476 - - 43.476
12.  Deposits with banks
2015 2014
Description Maturiry Interest rate £ €
{per annum) Restated
Current accounts 0%-0,05% 3.131.841 4.104.784
Term deposits 0-3 months (%-1,50% 3.023.704 3.917.874
Term deposits 4-0 months 0,12%-1,90% 2.086.680 978.793
Term deposits 7-12 months 0,20%-2,15% 6.060.363 2.045373
14.302.588 11.046.824

An amount of €63.895 is blocked as sccurity for letters of guarantee in favor of several
beneficiaries relevant to offers for insurance services (2014: €9.463). For credit and counterparty

risk exposure refer to note 23.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

Other debtors and prepayments

Other debtors

Prepayments and deposits

Amounts receivable from Cyprus Hire Rlsl\
Pools

Amounts receivabie from Group Insurance Pools

015 2004

é.* 61

Restated

- 3.695.908
379,797 344.250
177.572 192,966
155.430 133.257
712,799 4-.366.38!

Other debtors and prepayments represent balances that are repayable during the normal

course of the Company’s operations and are interest-free.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash with banks (Noze 12)
Term deposits with banks (Note 12)
Cash in hand

Deposits with original maturity of over 3 months
{Note 12)

Cash and cash equivalents as per the statement
of cash flows

Share capital

Authorised
26.887.085 Shares of €1 each

Issued and fully paid
16.643.960 Shares of €1 each

I January

Increase in issued share capital

Effect from the redenomination of share capital
from USD to Euro

31 December

Dividends

2015 20704

4 a
Restared

3.131.841 4.104.784
170,747 6.942.040
114.65] 204,934
14.417.239 11.251.758

(8.147.043) (3.024.166)

6.270.196 8.227.592
2013 2014
¢ €

Restated
26.887.085 26.887.085
16.643.960 8.223.684
8.223.684 8.223.684
6.000.000 -
2420276 -
16.643 960 8.223.684

As at 31 December 2015 the Company declared and fully paid in specie an interim dividend of
€15.067.603 (€0,91 per share) to its sole shareholder Nest Investments {Holdings) Ltd.
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17.  General insurance contract liabilities
2015 2014(Restated)
Insurance Reinsurers' Insurance  Relnsurers’ !
Contract share of Net Contract share of Net
Liabilities  labilities Hiabilities Liabilities Tiabilities liahilities
& € ¢ € & &
Provision for
owtstanding claims
reported 8.861.602 {1.887.695) 7.973.907 19.731.7152 (13.282.574) 6.449.178
Provisions for claims
incumed but not
reported (IBNR) and
claims incurred but not
enough reported
(IBNER) 2,122,000 (242,150} 1.880.750 992,208 992,208
Total cutstanding
clains 11.984.502 (2.129.845) 9.834.657 20.723.960 (13.282.574) 7.441.380
Provision {or unearned
premiums 10,323,514 {1.330.968) 8.992.546 35.035.542 {26.385.607) 8.449.035
Provision for premitm
deficiency reserve 5.000 - 5.000 13.573 13573
Provision for loss
adjustment reserve 272,623 - 272,625 - - -
Total general insurance
contract liabilities 22.385.641 {3.460.813) 19,124 828 55.773.073 (39.868.181) 15.904 894
The provisions for outstanding claims reported by policyholders, claims incurred but not enough
reported (IBNER) and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) are analysed as follows:
2015 2014 (Restated)
Insurance Reinsurers' Insurance Reinsurers’
confract share of Net contract share of Net
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
€ € € £ £ 3
1 January (20.723.960) 13.282.574 (7.441.386) (20.748.816) 15.148,555 (5.600.261}
Provision for the
year 18.049.022 (9.611.717) 8.437.305 21172915 (16.645.943) 4.526.972
Claims paid
during the year
continuing
operations 9.334.71¢ (572.679) 8.762.031 8.522.610 (237.463) 8.285.147
Claims paid
during the year
discontinued
operations 19.341.2017 (19.088.287) 252.920 i1.777.251 (11.547.723) 229528
Transfer of
reserves as aresult
of discontinued
operations (14.016.47T 13.860.264 (156.213} - - -
31 December 11.984.502 (2.129.845) 9.854.657 20.723.960 (13.282.574) 7.441.386
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17. General insurance contract Liabilities (continued)

The provision for unearned premiums is analysed as follows:

I January
Premiums writen
during the year
continuing
operations
Premiums writlen
during the year
discontinued
operations
Premiums camed
for the year

Insurance
confract
linbilities
3
35,035,542

23.613.947

46.719.367

2015
Reinsurers’
share of Net
liabifities liahitities
€ €
(26.585.607) $.449.935
(3.921.31% 19,692,628

(46.719.367) -

Insurance
contract
liabilities

€
24.898.330

22.866.7%0

45.373.918

2014{Resrared)
Reinsurers’
share of
liabilities
(E7.475.382)

{3.981.380)

(45.373.918)

Net
labilities
7.421.94%

18.885.410

Continuing
operations {22.744.402) 3.394 385 (F0130.07)  (21.214.296) 3350873 (17.837.423)
Premiums earned
for the year
discontinued
operations {48.879.682) 48.879.682 - (36.889.200) 36.889.200
Transfer of reserves
as a result of
discontinued
operations (23.421.258) 23421258 - - -
31 December 323,514 (1.330.968) 8.992,3406 35.035.542 {26.583.607) §.449 635
The provision for premium deficiency is analysed as follows:
2015 2014 (Restated)
Insurance Reinsurers’ Insurance Reinsurers’
conlract share of Net contract share of Net
liabilities liabilities Liakilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
€ € € € € &€
1 January 13.573 - 13.573 13.573 - 13.573
Provision for the
year {8.373) - (8.573) - - -
31 December 5.000 3.000 13.573 - 13.573
The provision for loss adjustment is analysed as {ollows:
2015 2014 (Restated}
Insurance Reinsurers’ Insurance Reinsurers’
contract share of Net contract share of Net
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilitics liahilities licthilities
£ € € £ € €
I January - - - - - -
Provision for the
year 272,625 - 272.625 - - -
31 December 272.625 - 272625 - - ~
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18. Related party transactions

Balances due from/ (to) related parties as at 31 December 2015, were as follows:

2015

¢

Premimns receivable from related companies 839
Premiums receivable from parent company 17.950
Premiums receivable from directors 5.400
Receivables from related companies 3.137.786
Payables to related companies -
Reinsurance payables to related companics {(31.682)
Loans payable to related companies (2.172.522)

2014

Restared

¢
3.800.017
8.451
1797
18.857.252
6.178.878
(9.593)
(3.030.997)

Income/ (expenses) from related party transactions in the years ended 31 December, were ay

follows:
2015
€
Gross premiums ceded by related companies
(discontinued operations) 46.719.367
Gross premiums ceded to related parties (22.090)
Direct insurance premiums with directors 1573
Direct insurance premiums with parent company 7.428
Direct insurance premiums with related companies 3.454
Rent, utilities and other expenses charged to parent
company 23.440
Internal audit fees charged by parent company -
Other services/ expenses charged by parent
company (34.661)
Expenses charged by parent company
(discontinued operations) (80.032)
Commissions paid to related companies
(discontinued operations) (10.861.163)
Claims paid to related companies (discontinued
operations) {19.341.207)
Proceeds from sale of investments to related
company 5.150.157
Proceeds from sale of investments to parent
company -
Fees from related companies (discontinued
operations) 3.148.653
Interest on loans to related companies (134.346)

2014
Restated

e
45.373.918
(7.191)
26.517
0.906
2.099

24.278
(10.443)

(3.503)
(139.984)
(8.532.478)

(11.777.251)

2.356.649
2.745.733

(132,033

The compensation of the Directors and key management personnel for the years ended 31

December was as follows:

2015 2014
Restated
£ €
Directors

Fees 62,850 62.850

Key management personnel
Salary and other short term benefits 490.294 446.072
Employer’s contributions for social insurance, etc. 40.846 39.320
Retirement benelil plan costs 20437 17.757
551.277 503.149
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18.  Related party transactions {continued)
The key management personnel comprise of the Chiel Executive Officer, the Financial
Controller, the Business Development Manager, the Operations Manager and the Claims
Manager.

19.  Other creditors and acerued expenses

2015 2014
Restated
€ é

Amounts due to reinsurers for premium reserve
retained 680,708 652,12
Amounts payable to Group Insurance pools/ funds 155430 5.118.258
Amounts due to claimanis 39.682 92.141
Motor Insurers Fund 161.929 152,009
Accrued expenses 481.628 643.307
Other provisions and reserves 90.055 1.017.845
Other creditors 200.000 1.258.635

1.809.432 8.934.007

Other creditors represent batances that are repayable during the normal course of the Com pany’s
operations and are interest-free, with the exception of premium reserve retained which bears an

inierest rate according to the terms of each treaty.

20.  Loans and borrowings

20135 2014
Restared
¢ €
Current loans and borrowings

Loan from a related company 413814 484.956
2013 2014
€ €

Non-current loans and borrowings
Loan from a related company 1.758.708 2.546.041

Loan from a related company

The loan was obtained from a related company on 1 April 2014 to finance part of the purchase
cost of the land and building in Nicosia acquired to be utilised as the Company’s Head Office.
The loan is repayable within 7 years after the date it was obtained. It bears an interest rate equal

to three months Euribor plus 5% margin per annum.

21.  Fair values of financial instruments

As the majority of the financial assets and financial liabilities are either short-term or are carried
at fair value management is of the opinion that the fair value of financial instruments is
approximately equal to their carrying amount at the reporting date. — see Note 11 for disclosures
in relation to the investments of the Company that are measured at fair value.
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22.  General insurance contract liabilities — terms and conditions, assumptions and
sensitivity of results
The Company is engaged in general insurance business in respect of the business classes
mentioned in Note 3.
Risks under these policies usually cover a period of 12 months, with the exception of the travel
and goods in trapsit business classes that cover shorter periods and the business class for
contractors insuring all risks that covers longer periods.
The liabilities for outstanding claims arising from insurance contracts issued by the Company are
calculated based on estimates by loss adjusters and facts known at the reporting date. With time,
these estimates are reconsidered and any adjustments are recognised in the financial statements
of the period in which they arise.
The principal assumptions underlying the estimates for each claim are based on past experience
and market trends and they take into consideration claims handling costs, inflation and ¢laim
numbers for each accident year. Also external factors that may affect the estimate of claims, such
as recent court rulings and the introduction of new legislation are taken into consideration.
The insurance contract liabilities are sensitive to changes in the above key assumptions. The
sensitivity of certain assumptions, such as the introduction of new legislation and the rulings of
certain court cases, is very difficult to be quantified. Furthermore, the delays that arise between
the occurrence of a claim and its subsequent notification and eventual setthement increase the
uncertainty over the cost of claims at the reporting date.
‘The table below demonstrates the development of claims estimates over the last five years for
direct business in Cyprus. In addition the reconciliation of these estimates with the total Hability
ncluded in the statement of financial position of the current year is demonstrated below:
2015
2009 and
prior years 2010 2011 2002 2013 2014 2005 Total
€ € € € € € € €
Year of loss 368513 1.934.923 3.909.886 5.660.911 $.295.674 8.736.041 9.984.901  38.890.849
Afler a year (3.715) 307.599 317.977 498.355 568.013 1.389.391 - 3.077.620
After two
years 410 74.563 121.869 201.649 255493 - - 633.984
After three
years 2.613 5421 H5.414 53.700 - - - 177.148
After four
years [.412 27.204 (7.899) - - - - 20.717
After five
years 4.000 (2.186) - - - . - £.814
Present
estimate for
claim 373233 2.347.524 4.457.247 6.414.615 9.119.180  10.125.432 9.984.901 42822132
Total payments _ (357.233)  (2.179.644) _ (4.192.168)  (5.581.700)  (7.389.959)  (7.025.186)  (6.313.879)  (33.039.769)
Total
outstanding
claims 16.000 167.880 265.079 832.915 1.729.221 3.100.246 3.671.022 9.782.363
Shaie uf
reinsurers - - (47.377) (99.489) (242.672)  (1.273.685) (211.595)  (1.874.818)
Net liability 16.000 167.850 217.702 733.426 1.486.549 1.826.561 3.459.427 7.907.545
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2014 (Restated)

Year of logs
Afler a year
After two years
After three years
After four years
After five years
Present estimate
for claim

Tolal payments

Total outstanding
claims

Share of
reinsurers

22. General insurance contract liabilitics ~ terms and conditions, assumptions and
sensitivity of results (continued)

2009 aned

prior years 204 2041 2042 2003 2084 Total

€ € € ¢ € ¢ €

368.513 1.934.923 3.909.886 5.660.911 8.295.674 8.736.041 28905948

(3.715) 307.599 317.977 498,355 568.013 - 1.688.229

410 74.563 121.869 201.648 - . 398.490

2.613 5.421 115414 - - . 123.448

1412 27.204 - - - - 28.616

2,000 - - - - - 2000

371.233 2.349.716 4.465.146 6.360.914 8.863.687 8.736.041 31146731

(357.233) _ (2.157.580) (3.971.268) (5.563.56) (7.153.919) (5.350.276) _ (24.553.840)

14.000 192.130 493.878 797.350 1.709.768 3.385.764 6.592.891

- - (47.576) (73.635) (185.823) (366.711) (673.545)

14,000 192.130 446,502 723.715 1.523.945 3.019.053 5.919.346

Net liability

23.

Risk management

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, is exposed to a variety of risks, the most
important of which are insurance risk, fluctuations in the prices of investments, foreign exchange
and interest rates, liquidity risk and credit risk.

These risks are identified, measured and monitored through various control mechanisms in order
to prevent undue risk concentrations.

Insurance Risk

The risk of an insurance policy occurs from the uncertainty of the amount and time of
presentation of the claim. Therefore the level of risk is determined by the frequency of such
claims, by the severity and their evolution from one period to the next.

For the general insurance industry, the major risks are the results of major catastrophic events
such as natural disasters. These risks vary depending on location, type and nature. The variability
of risks is mitigated by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as
a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by changes in any subset of the portfolio.
The exposure of the Company to insurance risks is also reduced by the following measures:

e  Introduction of strict underwriting policies
Strict review of ali claims that occur

*  Immediate assessment and processing of claims to minimise the possibility of negative
development in the long run, and

»  Use of effective reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure {0 catastrophic events,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movements in exchange rates, interest rates
and security prices.
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23.

Risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises as a result of timing differences on the repricing of deposits and other
investments and interest-bearing labilities. The Company closely monitors interest rate
movements and the repricing maturity structure of assets and liabilities which are subject to
changes in interest rates or have fixed rates.

Interest rate risk is measured using interest rate sensitivity gap analysis where the difference
between assets and Habilities repricing in each time band is calculated. This difference is then
multiplied with the assumed change in interest rates for the period from the repricing date unti]
twelve months from the date of the analysis, in order to find the annual impact on earnings of any
changes in interest rates for the next twelve months,

The table below indicates the effect on the Company’s net interest income, over a one-year
period, from reasonably possible changes in the interest rates:

Effect on the Company’s

Changes in interest rates nert inlerest income
2015 €
+0,5% 3ET5T
-0,5% 3L.757)
2014

3 0’5% 15.368
-0,5% (15.368)

Currency risk

The risk of changes in currency rates occurs when the Company has an open currency position in
any currency and is the risk of losses from adverse changes to the exchange rates. The table
below indicates the effect on the Company’s net profit and equity respectively, over a one-year
period, from reasonably possible changes in the EURQ/USD exchange rates, as the Company’s
most significant exposure is in US Dollar (USD). As at 31 December 2014 the Company’s most
significant exposure was in Jordanian Dinars (JOD) and the most significant asset denominated
in another currency was the investment in a listed bank in Qatar - refer to price risk below:

Changes in Changes in

EURO/USD USDAJOD

exchange rates exchange rates

2015 2014

Effect on equity LEffect on equity
€ €
+5% 292.280 231.654
- 5% (292.280) (231.654)
Effect on profit Effecr on profir
€ €
+ 3% 292.280 371.001
~ 5% (292.280) (371.001)
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23.  Risk management (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by currency

The below table presents an analysis of the Company’s assets and liabilities by currency as at 3}
December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

Balances in Balances in Balances
United States Furo in Balances in
Dollars Jordenian other
Dinars currencies Total
31 December 2015
€ ¢ € ¢ 3
Assets
Property and equipment 6.481.252 - - 6.481.252
Intangible assets - 451.579 - - 451.579
Investment propetiies - 5.554.897 ~ ~ 5.554.897
Investments . 2.621.759 - 2.621.759
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract labilities 3.213.739 247,074 - - 3.460.813
Deferred acquisition costs - 2.126.000 - - 2.126.000
Receivable from refated companies 3.123.670 14.116 3.137.786
Premiums receivable 5.746 8.149.451 - - 8.155.197
Other debtors and prepayments 155.430 557.36% - - 712,799
Cash and cash equivalents 191.788 14.225.451] - - 14.417.239
Total assets 6.690.373 40.428.948 - - 47119321
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities - 22.585.641 - - 22.585.641
Deferred acquisition income - 370.109 - . 370.109
Reinsurers current accounts - 101316 - - 101.316
Other creditors and accrued
expenses 844.791 964.641 - - 1.809.432
Loans and borrowings - 2.172.522 - - 2.172.522
Total liabilitics 844,791 26.194.229 - - 27.039.020
Net position 5.845.582 14.234,719 - - 20.080.301
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23.  Risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by currency

31 December 2014 (Restated)

Assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments

Reinsurers® share of insurance
contract liabilities

Deferred acquisition costs

Reinsurers current accounts

Receivable from related companies

Premiums receivable

Other debtors and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities

Income received in advance

Insurance contract Labilities

Deferred acquisition income

Reinsurers current accounts

Payables to related companies

Other creditors and accrued
expenses

Loans and borrowings

Total liabilities

Net position

Price risk

Balances in Belances in Balances
United States Furo in Balances in
Dollars Jordanian other
Dinars currencies Total
a3 € 2 ¢ 3
- 5.630.426 5.731.903 - 11.362.329
- 510.541 128.030 - 638.571
- 43.714 4.633.079 3.962.394 §.639.187
39.837.571 30.610 - - 39.8068.181
- 1.962.514 - 1.962.514
2.608.937 303.928 - 123.497 3.036.362
18.496.718 555,784 - {195.250) 18.857.252
4.639.654 7.299.927 - - 11.939.58]
3.834.083 386.288 121.509 24.501 4.366.381
2.396.686 7.177.377 1.634.487 43,208 11.251.758
71.813.649 23.901.109 12.249.008 3.958.350 111,922,116
1.874.085 - - - 1.874.085
39.029.461 16.743.614 - - 55.773.075
- 308.332 - - 308.332
7.286.904 316.515 - 203.387 7.806.806
6.093.316 174.824 (38.137) (51.125) 6.178.878
T.774.726 836.575 234.050 89.556 8.934.907
- 3.030.997 - - 3.030.997
62.058.492 21.410.857 195913 241.818 83.907.080
9.755.157 2.490.252 12.053.095 3.716.532 28.015.036

Price risk is the risk of adverse movements in the market prices of equity shares.

Equity securities price risk

The risk of ioss from changes in the price of equity shares, arises when there is an adverse

change in the price of investments in equity securities held by the Company.

The Company monitors this risk on a regular basis, in order to ensure it remains within

acceptable levels.

A change in the prices of equity securities classified as ‘available for sale’ affects equity (unless
there is an impairment). The table below indicates how equity will be affected from a change in
the price of the equity securities held, as a result of reasonably possible changes in the relevant

stock exchange indices.
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23.

Risk management (continued)

Price risk (continued)

2015

German Austrian, Finaish Stock
Exchanges

German Austrian, Finnish Stock
Exchanges

2014 (Restated)

Qatar Stock Iixchange

Qatar Stock Exchange

Changes
io the Index
%

Effect on equity
¢

774.931

(774.931)

1.188.718
(1.188.718)

For equity securities measured at fair value using valuation model based on non-observable
inputs (Level 3), sensitivity analysis is presented in Note 11.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will suffer losses as a result of their inability to fully
meel payment obligations as and when they fall due. To manage this risk, the Company maintains
at all times cash at bank and other highly liquid assets in order to prevent undue risk

con¢entrations.

Analysis of financial liabilities by contractual maturity

31 December 2015

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Deferred acquisition income
Reinsurers current accounts

Other creditors and accrued expenses
Loans and borrowings

Total Habilities

Within one

Over one

year year Total
& € ¢
22.385.732 199.909 22.585.641
336.568 33.541 370.109
101316 - 101316
1.809.432 - 1.809.432
413.814 1.758.708 2.172.522
25.046.862 1.962.158 27.039.020
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23.

Risk management (continued)
Ligquidity risk (continned)

Analysis of financial liabilities by comractual maturity

Within one Over one
year yedr Total
31 December 2014 (Restated)
€ & €
Liabilities
[nsurance contract Habilities 55.709.859 63.216 55.773.075
Deferred acquisition income 291.541 16,791 308.332
Reinsurers current accounts 7.806.806 - 7.806.806
Payable to related companies 6.178.878 - 6.178.878
Other creditors and accrued expenses 8.934.907 - 8.934.907
Loans and borrowings 484,956 2.546.041 3.030.997
79.406.947 2.626.048 82.032.995

Total liabilities

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of failure by counterparties 1o perform under their contractual obligations.

The Company is transacting with a large number of clients, brokers and agents in order to
achieve adequate diversification of credit risk.

Credit risk is further reduced as the Company monitors credit exposures on a regular basis and,
when necessary, provides for any doubtful debts.

The tables below present the maximum credit risk exposure arising from the various financial
assets in accordance with their credit rating as determined by Moody’s:

37 December 2015 Aa2 Caa? Caa3 D-D+ Unrated Total
€ € £ 3 3 €
Deposits with banks
(Note 12) 2.505.503 1.535.473 7.683.743 - 2.577.869  14.302.588
Total 2.505.503 1.535.473 7.683.743 - 2.577.869  14.302.588
3] Dece;ﬁber 20]4 Aal3 B+ Caa3 D-D+ U}??'afe(! TOR?[
€ € £ € € ¢
Deposits with banks
{Note 12) - ~  4.805.887 - 6.240.937  11.046.824
Current accourtts with
reinsurers 8.382 18.044 - - 3.009.936 3.036.362
Total 8.382 18.044  4.805.887 - 9.250.873  14.083.186

Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities (Note 17}
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23. Risk management (continued)

The Company places a lot of emphasis on its counterparty default risk for reinsurance and the

following considerations are part of the reinsurance policy of the Company:

¢ Risk Distribution: Reinsurance is shared by a number of reinsurance companies in order to
diversify the counterparty default risk for reinsurance and reduce the concentration risk. As
a result there is no over-reliance on any one reinsurer over a predefined maximum level of
EXPOSUTe.

»  Financial Strength Rating: Reinsurers are selected according to minimum credit ratings from
S&P and AM Best, with adequate distribution over different credit rating bands. Reinsurers
are selected subject to a satisfactory review of their financial status, their reinsurance
arrangements and past performance.

24. Capital management

25.

The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored by the Superintendent of Insurance {(Ministry
of Finance) in order to enswre a minimum margin of solvency. The required minimum capital is
determined in order to ensure the minimum solvency margin, The Company also maintains
additional capital to support its business goal and to maximize its shareholder’s value.

As from | January 2016 a new regulatory framework, Solvency 11, is in force in Cyprus, Solvency
11 is the updated set of regulatory requirements for insurance companies which operate in the
European Union, which establishes a revised set of market consistent EU.-wide capital
requirements and risk management standards.

The Company manages its capital base annually, by assessing potential deficit between the current
level and the required capital to support its work. Adjustments to current levels of capital may take
place because of changes in economic conditions and the dangers that characterize the activities of
the Company. To maintain the required capital the Company may adjust the amount of dividends

paid to the parent conpany.

The Company fully complies with the legal capital requirements set by the Superintendent of
Insurance, during the reported accounting periods.

Capital commitments
At 31 December 2015 the Company had no commitments for capital expenditure (2014;
€540.000).
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